ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 3, 2005
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Bob Lynn
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 7

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
to correct obsolete references to the office of secretary of
state by substituting references to the office of |I|ieutenant
gover nor.

- MOVED HIR 7 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act relating to a determnation of costs attributable to
relocating the legislature or the state capital or of
constructing a new capitol building in the present capital city,
and to a determination of all costs of retaining the existing
capitol building and keeping the state capital and legislature
in the present capital city; relating to voter approval of
certain bondable costs; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 103
"An Act requiring an actionable claim against the state to be
tried without a jury."

- MOVED HB 103 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 127

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 3, 2005



"An Act relating to service in the peace corps and to service as
a diplomat in the United States Foreign Service as allowable
absences from the state for purposes of eligibility for
permanent fund dividends and to the period for filing an
application for a permanent fund dividend; authorizing the
Department of Revenue to issue admnistrative orders inposing
sanctions for certain msrepresentations or other actions
concerning eligibility for a permanent fund dividend and
providing for admnistrative appeal of those orders; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 7
SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM SEC. OF STATE REFERENCES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ANDERSON

01/ 21/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 05 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 03/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 48

SHORT TI TLE: EXPENDI TURE FOR CAPI TOL CONSTRUCTI ON

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE, GATTO

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 05

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, FIN

02/ 22/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 22/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 22/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 03/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 103

SHORT TITLE: CLAI M5 AGAI NST THE STATE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

01/ 24/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 05 (H STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 03/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 127

SHORT TITLE: PFD: PEACE CORPS/ DI PLOVAT/ SANCTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MCGUI RE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 3, 2005



02/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 05 (H) STA, FIN
03/ 03/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JON BI TTNER, St aff

to Representative Tom Anderson

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: I nt roduced HIR 7 on Dbehalf of
Represent ati ve Anderson, sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As co-sponsor of HB 48, answered questions
fromthe committee.

BEN MULLI GAN, St aff

to Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of Representative
Stoltze, co-sponsor of HB 48, addressed the questions that had
arisen during the last hearing on the bill

LEONARD DEAL

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself to state his
concern about the way HB 48 is witten.

W N GRUENI NG, Chair

Al aska Committee

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of the Al aska
Commttee, predicted that HB 48 may hinder genuine efforts to
i nprove Al aska's capital city.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 103.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

to Representative Mke Kelly
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 3, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
103, on behalf of Representative Kelly, sponsor.

ROGER GAY

Bi g Lake, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of hinself, concluded
that HB 103 woul d not benefit the state.

DOUG WOOLI VER, Admi ni strative Attorney

Adm nistrative Staff

Ofice of the Adm nistrative Director

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Explain the fiscal note to HB 103, on
behal f of the Al aska Court System

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L McGU RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 127.

JUSTI N BARBALACE

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself in support
of HB 127.

CARCLYN GRAY

(No address provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Northern Al aska
Peace Corps Friends during the hearing on HB 127, and stated
that she thinks the bill would help increase the nunber of
peopl e who apply for the Peace Corps.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02:13 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives Gatto, Elkins, Gardner, and
Seat on. Representatives Ranras and Guenberg arrived as the
neeting was in progress.

HIR 7-CONST AM SEC. OF STATE REFERENCES

8:03:24 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 7, Proposing anendnents to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 3, 2005



Constitution of the State of Alaska to correct obsolete
references to the office of secretary of state by substituting
references to the office of |ieutenant governor.

8:03: 25 AM

JON BITTNER, Staff to Representative Tom Anderson, Al aska State
Legislature, introduced HIR 7 on behalf of Representative
Ander son, sponsor. He reported that back in 1970, when the

| egi sl ature proposed a series of anendnents to the Al aska State
Constitution that changed the name of the Ofice of Secretary of
State to the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, two references
to "Secretary of State" were m ssed. Those references appear in
Article 2, Section 5, and Article 3, Section 25. The proposed
resolution would correct that oversight and put the issue on the
ball ot for a popular vote of the people.

8:04: 30 AM

MR BITINER, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, said he is not aware of anyone who is opposed to [HIR
7] .

8:04:42 AM

CHAIR SEATON, after ascertaining that there was no one to
testify, closed public testinony.

8: 05: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report HIR 7 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 7 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 48- EXPENDI TURE FOR CAPI TOL CONSTRUCTI ON

8:06:45 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 48, "An Act relating to a determnation of costs
attributable to relocating the legislature or the state capita

or of constructing a new capitol building in the present capital

city, and to a determnation of all costs of retaining the
existing capitol building and keeping the state capital and
| egislature in the present capital city; relating to voter

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 3, 2005



approval of certain bondable <costs; and providing for an
effective date.”

8: 06: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legislature, as co-
sponsor of HB 48, indicated that, since the last hearing on the
bill, many questions arose. He deferred further discussion of
the bill to his staff.

8:08:16 AM

BEN MULLI GAN, Staff to Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska State
Legislature, testifying on behalf of Representative Stoltze, co-
sponsor of HB 48, addressed the questions that had arisen during
the last hearing on the bill. First, regarding whether the
state would have any jurisdiction over a Juneau bond, for
exanple, he said, "The city is free to apply for a bond to pay

for a capitol building.” Second, he provided definitions for
"capitol” - the building and "capital" - the city serving as the
seat of governnent. Third, regarding the neaning of "new " he

said there had been questions as to whether that would include
additions and renovations. He said that may be a matter for the
commttee to adopt an anendnent to defined the term

8:09:40 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked who has the authority to negotiate terns for
| ease agreenents for buildings in the state, including a
capi tol

8:.10: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE indicated that it would depend on the
cost of the building. He noted that sone leases in the past
have been controversi al .

8:10: 50 AM

MR. MJULLI GAN said he would look into an answer regarding at what
anount the | egislature would becone invol ved.

8:11:41 AM
REPRESENTATI VE  STOLTZE, in response to questions from
Representative Gardner, said he believes the bill, as currently

witten, would require that any kind of restructuring of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 3, 2005



current use of the existing capitol that would involve partial
use of another existing building would have to go before the
voters, which is why his staff had suggested the commttee may
want to anmend the bill.

8.12:39 AM
CHAI R SEATON r eopened public testinony.
8.12:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE clarified that [HB 48] is not about
noving the capital, but is the public's say about the cost of
buil ding a capitol.

8:13:59 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if Representative Stoltze has any suggestions
for amendnent | anguage.

8:14:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that he respects the commttee
process in perfecting a bill. He said, "This is certainly ny
best stab at protecting the public's voice."

8:15:30 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he thinks the commttee would agree that it
doesn't want to "have sonething that would constrain the
| egi slature from inproving the capitol building." Furt her nore,
he encouraged Representative Stoltze to provide the commttee
wi th any "discrete | anguage.™

8:15:51 AM
REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE sai d, " want flexibility, not
| oophol es. ™
8. 16: 03 AM
LEONARD DEAL, testifying on behalf of hinself, stated concern
about the way the bill is witten. He offered his understanding
that the bill strongly weighs the costs - of either building,
relocating, or inproving - "on the Juneau side." He opined that
the bill doesn't take into account what the nmjority of people

in Alaska really want.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 3, 2005



MR. DEAL directed attention to [the bill title], which read as
fol |l ows:

"An  Act relating to a determnation of costs
attributable to relocating the legislature or the
state <capital or of constructing a new capitol
building in the present capital city, and to a
determ nation of all costs of retaining the existing
capitol building and keeping the state capital and
| egislature in the present capital city; relating to
vot er approval of certain bondable costs; and
providing for an effective date."”

MR. DEAL said his interpretation of "determ nation of all costs
of retaining the existing capitol building" is that it would
include the costs of renodeling. He noted that a capitol is
anywhere the | egislature neets.

8:.18:46 AM
MR. DEAL nade sonme comments related to a capital nove.
8:20: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE proffered that M. Deal is partially
speaking to another bill sponsored by Representative Norman
Rokeberg regarding "a conpetitive process"” of capital |ocation.

8:20: 04 AM

CHAIR SEATON told M. Deal that that bill should be heard by the
commttee in about a week, at which point, M. Deal would be
wel come to cone back and testify on that issue.

8:20:47 AM

W N GRUENI NG, Chair, Al aska Conmittee, noted that his comittee
is an all-volunteer group dedicated to inproving and enhancing
Al aska's capital city. He enphasized that the committee's
current mssion is to be proactive, whereas nmany years ago, it
was nore of a reactive mssion - waiting for the next capital
nove effort to surface. He stated that the citizens of Al aska
have repeatedly voted down efforts to nove the capital. M.
Guening offered a brief history of results of the commttee's
proactivity. He said the inpact of losing the capital would be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 3, 2005



devastating to Juneau. He expressed the need to advocate for
t he best and nost technol ogically advanced facilities.

8:24: 44 AM

MR. GRUENI NG said whether it's the proposed |egislation or sone
other proposal, sone form of |egislative approval wll be
required and the cost would be known in advance. He stated,
"There is no need to anend the Frank Initiative to acconplish
this." He stated his belief that the legislature is required to
approve all l|eases in excess of $1 mllion. He predicted that,
unfortunately, HB 48 may hinder genuine efforts to inprove
Al aska's capital city.

8:26: 24 AM

MR GRUENING, in response to a request from Chair Seaton to
conclude his testinony in the interest of tine, stated that the
FRANK Initiative was never designed to be "used in this way";
rather, it's intent was to prevent the wholesale nove of a
capital city without the electorate know ng the cost in advance.
He rem nded the commttee nenbers that the l|legislature can, in
fact, evaluate and consider future proposals that wll inprove
the facilities, wi t hout unnecessary, ti me-consuni ng, and
expensi ve statew de votes.

8:27.:18 AM
CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
8:.27.28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d, when she was canpai gning, one of
the thenes brought to her attention was that people didn't want
to go to a vote over every little thing that is controversial.
She said constituents cone to their legislators with feedback
and depend on them to address problens. Representati ve Gardner
stated that she doesn't think HB 48 is necessary. She indicated
that her constituents do not support a new capitol building.

8:30:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO suggested that changing a room is
renovation, while noving a building is beyond renovation. He
illustrated several exanples ranging between those two actions.
Representative Gatto said the key question is: "Does the Frank
Initiative indicate that whenever we're going to spend a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 3, 2005



significant anount of noney involving the only capital that the
people of the state have, shouldn't they be entitled to a
voi ce?" He said he thinks the answer to that question is yes.

8:31:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS revealed that his constituents, although
they would enjoy having better access to their capital
specifically told him "Don't build a new one and don't spend
the noney to nove the one that we have." He said he likes his
office and the capitol building just as it is. He suggested
that there are nore inportant concerns before the legislature
such as the state's finances and the burden of the Public
Enpl oyees' Retirement System (PERS) and the Teachers' Retirenent
System (TRS).

8:32:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he and co-sponsor Representative
Carl Gatto will "run the | anguage proposals by nenbers so we can
cone before a commttee at your convenience." He stated that
his primary goal is to "maintain the spirit of the Frank
Initiative." He indicated that he thinks nbst constituents want
to have a voice regarding the capitol building. He added, "The
way this Frank Initiative is nmarketed, | think fol ks think they

have the right to vote."
8: 33: 53 AM

CHAI R SEATON, regarding the concerns expressed relating to
limting the scope of the bill so that it does not include
renovation or additions to the existing capitol building, asked
Representative Stoltze to provide the commttee with |anguage
addr essi ng that concern.

8:34:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rem nded the commttee that Avrum G oss
had testified at a previous hearing on HB 48 [on 2/22/05], at
which tinme he had promsed to provide the conmmttee with sone
witten |egal comrents. He said he would like to get those
comments as soon as possi bl e.

8:35:04 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked all conmmttee nenbers to get those types of
comments to his office as soon as possi bl e.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 3, 2005



8:35: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that [HB 48] "is a bill to
require a vote." He noted that there is a retroactivity cl ause,
and he questioned how a bill requiring a vote could be

retroacti ve.
8: 36: 04 AM
CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 48 was heard and hel d.

HB 103- CLAI M5 AGAI NST THE STATE

8:36: 22 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO. 103, "An Act requiring an actionable claim against the
state to be tried without a jury."

8:36: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 103, noted that the proposed |egislation would change a
state law back to its original form wherein cases against the
state were tried by a judge, rather than a jury. He said the
state has a right to determne how it wll be sued. He noted
that in [1975], at the request of the University of Alaska, the
original law was changed to provide for jury trials when the
state was sued. He opined that the use of a judge for trials
against the state would be nore appropriate, and he said the
chief council of the university has been contacted and has no
objection to [HB 103].

8:38: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said sonme of the problens that have arisen
from the current law are that the state is seen as a "deep
pocket” and, thus, suits against the state may be taken nore
casually than suits between parties other than the state. He
said HB 103 would not limt access to the judicial system or
limt the right to appeal. He stated his belief that HB 103
woul d provide adequate protections to those who would be
aggrieved against the state. Furthernore, he said he believes
the proposed legislation would reduce costs and increase
efficiency of the state's court system while protecting against
awards by juries that seem"not to pass the laugh test."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 3, 2005



8:39:43 AM

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Mke Kelly, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, on behalf of Representative Kelly, sponsor,
directed attention to a docunent included in the commttee
packet |abeled, "Imunity." He noted that the first page of the
docunent addresses sovereign inmunity, while the rest of the
docunent includes other types of imunities not pertaining to
the bill.

8:41:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLY, in response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, said he thinks that sonetines judges
award greater liability and nore significant recovery, while

other tines juries do so.
8:42: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his understanding that in many
cases people prefer to go to a judge rather than a jury, because

juries, in many cases, tend to render smaller verdicts than
j udges.
8:43:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he thinks the heart of HB 103 is the
i ssue of sovereign inmunity.

8:44: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renmarked that it's tougher to get a
verdict in a jury trial than in a judge trial. He said there
are lots of strategic issues regarding when to go to a judge
versus a jury. He noted that sone of those issues are nentioned
on the second page of the state's fiscal note [included in the
committee packet].

8:45: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY responded that he has been visited by tria
| awyers in the state, and they have renmained neutral. He
reiterated that the heart of HB 103 is to protect the state in
jurisdictions where "this my have been a problem™ He
mentioned aviation and search and rescue. He noted that there

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 3, 2005



is a handout [included in the commttee packet] show ng sanples
of jury awards in four different cases.

8:.47.:10 AM

ROGER CAY, testifying on behalf of hinself, told the commttee
that he is from Big Lake, Al aska. He said, "If you let the
state decide in favor of the state, you wll forfeit the
presunption of fairness."” He stated his belief that if "the

MIler Reach fire" had been tried by a judge, the state would
not have prevailed. He said, "The jury did not seemto be able
to separate their feelings of support for the fire fighters from
t he obvious inconpetence of the state's handling of the fires.”
He posited that if the committee is trying to "tilt the scales
of justice in favor of the state,” it mght be better off
letting the jury nmake the deci sions. M. Gay concluded that HB
103 woul d not benefit the state.

8:48:49 AM

DOUG WOOLI VER, Adm nistrative Attorney, Admnistrative Staff,
Ofice of the Admnistrative Director, Alaska Court System told
the commttee that he worked together with Gail Voigtlander from
the Departnment of Law (DOL) to figure out that there are an
estimated four jury trials a year where the state is a
defendant, and each of those trials costs an average of $4, 000.
He noted that that noney would be saved if the trial had been in
front of a judge. M. Woliver enphasized that the court has a
decades-old tradition of not supporting or opposing |egislation
and does not support or oppose HB 103. He said he merely wanted
to explain the fiscal note.

8:50:49 AM

MR. WOLVER, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,
explained that the cost of a jury trial is explained in part by
the fact that jury trials typically take | onger than court-tried
trials. He said the big savings is not getting rid of tine, but
getting rid of the jury fees.

8:53:48 AM
CHAIR SEATON, in response to Representative Guenberg, asked
that questions regarding the detailed interactions of the court

be taken up in the House Judiciary Standing Committee.

8:54:37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 3, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested that [HB 103] would put a single
person in the position of being "judge, juror, and executioner."

8:55: 06 AM

MR. WOOLI VER said he supposes it would, but judge-tried trials
are a reqgular part of the system He said, "The judge is the
fact finder in those cases, as opposed to a jury."

8:55:34 AM

MR, WOOLIVER, in response to a request from Chair Seaton to
clarify what an actionable claim against the state would be,
said [HB 103] would cover civil clains where the state is the
def endant .

8:55:52 AM
CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
8:56: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he was practicing |aw when the |aw
was changed in [1975], and sone cases were better tried by
judges, while others were better before juries. He recommended
al l owi ng the decision to be made on a case-by-case basis.

8:58: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER recommended being careful in reading the
previously nentioned sanple jury awards, because the specifics
of the case are not provided.

8:59:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said the point nade by Representative
G uenberg about the sovereign maintaining the option of choosing
is not unusual in the U S. He said, "It goes all the way from
very restrictive in the US to actually quite permssive." He
reiterated that HB 103 would not take away the option for
appeal .

9: 00: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the |egislature can decide which
types of cases a person can sue the state over and whether or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 3, 2005



not there will be a jury. He said the national historical trend
has been to allow states to be sued by jury trials. He asked if
there are any other states that Representative Kelly is aware of
that have allowed a jury trial and then taken away that jury
trial after sone tine.

9:02: 32 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY sai d he doesn't know.
9: 02: 45 AM

MR. HI LYARD said Article 2, Section 21, in the Al aska State
Constitution notes that a few state constitutions still prohibit
all suits against the state. He offered sone history regarding
the law i n question.

9:04: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that the case involving the
university [back in 1975] highlights his previous point that
def endants often want juries.

9:04:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY urged the conmttee to pass HB 103 out of
comittee.

9: 05: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 103 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 103 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 127- PFD: PEACE CORPS/ DI PLOVAT/ SANCTI ONS

9:05:43 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 127, "An Act relating to service in the peace corps and
to service as a diplomat in the United States Foreign Service as
al l owabl e absences from the state for purposes of eligibility
for permanent fund dividends and to the period for filing an
application for a permanent fund dividend; authorizing the
Department of Revenue to issue admnistrative orders inposing
sanctions for certain msrepresentations or other actions

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 3, 2005



concerning eligibility for a permanent fund dividend and
providing for admnistrative appeal of those orders; and
providing for an effective date."

9:05:44 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LESIL MGJRE, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 127, stated that the proposed |egislation would
reinstate all owabl e absences for Peace Corps volunteers, so that
they could receive the Al aska permanent fund dividend (PFD).
She said the allowable absence was elimnated for Peace Corps

volunteers in [1998]. Two years later, a constituent who had
been serving in the Peace Corps in Nigeria, spoke to
Representative MQ@uire about |osing the PFD. Representati ve

McGQuire spoke of the service that Peace Corps volunteers
perform both to the Third Wrld countries to which they are
signed and to the U S She said the woman who spoke with her
was a lifelong Al askan who did not feel supported by her state.

9: 08: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE noted that the other half of bill would
allow the Departnent of Revenue to adm nister penalties, which
she predicted would increase the nunber of fines that the
departnment is able to inpose on those folks who have clearly
engaged in fraudul ence. She said the penalties are all existing
legal terms; the intent is to give the departnent the power to
make the individual forfeit the PFD and to subject a fine on
t hat i ndividual .

9:10: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE explained that the reason for dropping
the fine from $5,000 to $3,000 is that "we know that we can
i npose, administratively, a civil fine of $3,000, but there's
case law that indicates that we cannot for $5,000." She offered
further details. She noted that there currently are 42
[ Alaskan] Peace Corps volunteers, and if the departnent is
allowed to inpose sanctions for fraudulent PFD clains, that wll
nore than pay for those.

9:11: 38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE said sonme people don't |ike the dividend
itself, for various reasons, and she said there is a time and

pl ace for that discussion. She noted that another concern sone
peopl e have expressed is in regard to creating nore and nore

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 3, 2005



exenptions to the PFD program instead of keeping the dividend
for the "true Alaskans."” Representative McQuire said she agrees
that the PFD should be given to true Al askans and supports
ratcheting up the penalties for fraud. She indicated that the
Peace Corps is a recognized program that Al askans have commtted
to, not just sone trip they take w thout an end date.

9:13: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE stated that there has been concern about
the 10,000-plus mlitary personnel and their famlies who are
receiving [the PFD] - many of them who have not set foot in
Al aska for over a decade. She indicated that she is not trying
to take away from the service that the fine nmen and wonen give
in the mlitary. She enphasi zed that those who join the Peace
Corps are also answering a call to serve, but on a different

| evel . Representative MQiire noted that President CGeorge W
Bush, in a recent State of the Union address, made a call to
Anericans to conme back to the Peace Corps. She reported that

roughly 85 percent of the Peace Corps volunteers who have served
[fron] Al aska have returned honme, and they have a lot to offer
the state when they return. Many of themteach.

9:15:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she likes HB 127, particularly as it
pertains to the Peace Corps. She offered her understanding that
Peace Corps volunteers not only share information about "us"
with people around the world, but they bring back "a greater
understanding,” and they do so at great sacrifice to thensel ves.
She stated her problem with the bill is in regard to the
inclusion of diplomats to the U S. Foreign Service. She said
that, unlike the Peace Corps, those in the U S. Foreign Service
have made a career choice, and they are paid nmuch better and
receive benefits. Representative Gardner, in response to a
gquestion from Chair Seaton, said she would like to know if the
sponsor would accept a conceptual anendnent to renove the
| anguage including the U S. Foreign Service.

9:17: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE said Senator Fred Dyson had requested
that the U S. Foreign Service be included. She offered her
understanding that there are currently 36 [Al askans] in the U S
Foreign Service. She said that part of the bill is "less dear”
to her; however, it is worthy of discussion. She noted that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 3, 2005



Peace Corps volunteers were included in the exenptions from
1983-1998, whereas the diplomats have never been included.

9:18: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that "diplomat” may be a term of
art. He said a secretary, delivery person, or janitor who works
in the U S. Foreign Service may not be included, but they should
be. He suggested that those who work in the United Nations, or
relief organizations, or Doctors Wthout Boarders are often in
harnms way and coul d be consi dered.

9:20:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG di rected attention to page 4, lines 13-
19, regarding regulations and application. He stated he is
quite sure that the Department of Revenue already has general
regulatory authority, and he said he is wondering why that
section of the bill is necessary.

9:21: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE said she wants to be careful and specific
regardi ng regul ations. She indicated that [in this case] it is
better to give specific authority to the legislature to craft
regul ations. Representative McQuire continued as follows:

| think we've entered into a very interesting and
potentially dangerous tinme in Alaska, over the |ast
decade, with respect to regulations: The fol ks that
are witing themare not elected; they don't ever cone
back before the voters; there is virtually no recourse
for the fol ks who are inpacted by them the process is
convoluted, at best; and it is ny personal opinion
that, as |aw nmakers, the nore specific we can be about
the kind of regulations and the regulatory authority
that we want, the better off we are.

9:22:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded, "This doesn't require them
it gives themdiscretion.” He noted that the |anguage read that
the "Departnent of Revenue nmay immediately adopt regulations
necessary"; therefore it is not necessary to change the
effective date.

9:23:17 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 3, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE revealed that "this" was a little bit
controversial in the beginning, because there was concern that

"all of a sudden, many Al askans out there who may be
m srepresenting thenselves would suddenly be subject to
penalties they hadn't been [subject to previously]." She added,

"So, we were delicate in the area.”
9:24: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said President George W Bush tal ks about
"the armes of conpassion,” and he said he thinks Representative

McGQuire is "right on the mark here.” He stated his support of
[HB 127].
9:24:55 AM

CHAI R SEATON said an analysis was done last year on all the
categories of exenptions, and it was found that in the |argest
categories, 83 percent of the people never returned to Al aska
He noted that [last year's] House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee had discussed holding the PFD of qualified people who
| eave Al aska for a period of tinme, which would nean that those
people would have to come back and reestablish their physical
presence in Alaska, at which tine they would receive the
w thheld dividends. He indicated that it would help ensure that
the highly notivated and trained people would have additional
notivation to return to Al aska.

9:27:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE indicated that she would be nore than
happy to cosponsor |egislation regarding that idea; however, she
warned that the legislature needs to be careful about putting
[ soneone's dividend noney] into a trust w thout his/her consent.
She noted that the average nunber of Peace Corps vol unteers has
not gone up over the years; it's about 35. She said the idea
that sonmeone would volunteer for the Peace Corp and have the
incentive be a $900 check doesn't seem likely. Representati ve
MCGuire said the Peace Corps volunteer is commtted to two
years, whereas those in the mlitary are there for varying
anounts of tinme, which brings up different concerns. She stated
her willingness to work with the commttee to help ensure the
PFD goes to those whose intent is to return to Al aska.

9:31:42 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 3, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE M CGUI RE, in response to a question from
Representative Gatto, said that a spouse or independent of a
Peace Corps volunteer who went wth the volunteer would not
qualify for the PFD. She said there are only two exenptions to
that, which are for those in the U S. Congress or Senate, and
for those in the mlitary.

9:32:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M CGUI RE, in response to a question from
Representative Gatto regardi ng whet her sonmeone volunteering tine
in Sri Lanka after the recent Tsunam wouldn't be just as
deserving of a PFD, noted that the person in Sri Lanka can
decide to go honme whenever he/she wants, whereas the Peace Corps
vol unteer has commtted to two years.

9:35:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = McGUI RE, in response to guesti ons from
Representative Gatto relating to diplomats, confirnmed that the
term diplomat is defined, and she stated that dependents and
spouses of those in the U S. Foreign Service would not be
i ncluded in the exenption.

9:36:41 AM

REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE, in response to questions from Chair
Seaton, said she remenbered discussion from the previous year
regarding an exenption for those out of the state for nedica
reasons, but she said she can't recall whether the dependents of
t he person were included.

9:37:10 AM

JUSTI N BARBALACE, testifying on behalf of hinself in support of
HB 127, told the conmttee that he is a Peace Corps volunteer

whose two-year commtnment will begin in June of this year. He
said HB 127 would nake it possible for him to pay his student
| oans. He offered a brief history of the Peace Corps, and he

said the state should take the responsibility to support Peace
Cor ps vol unteers from Al aska.

9:41:15 AM

MR. BARBALACE, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, said Peace Corps volunteers' pay is based on the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 3, 2005



average that a person in the country in which they are serving
makes.

9:41: 39 AM

CAROLYN GRAY, testifying on behalf of the Northern Al aska Peace
Corps Friends, said she is a returned Peace Corps vol unteer who
served in Panama and, after attending graduate school at
Stanford University, came back to Alaska to teach social studies
and Spanish for 26 years. She said she volunteers to assist the
Peace Corps in it recruiting and educational efforts. Ms. Gray
said recruiting has been a difficult process in Al aska since
1998. She said the group thanks Representative MGuire for
introducing HB 127, because she said she thinks it would help
i ncrease the nunber of people who apply for the Peace Corps.

M5. GRAY noted, "Alaskan Peace Corps volunteers and diplonats
are part of our foreign policy." She said she thinks the Peace
Corps brings expertise back to Al aska. She said that poverty
problens are solved overseas, and if those problens are not
solved, they lead to general global unrest. Vol unt eers who
return to the state have know edge of an additional |anguage, as
well as other cultures, which can help in working with the many
types of groups living in Al aska.

M5. GRAY reported that the University of Alaska, for the first
time, has a Masters International program in conjunction wth
the Peace Corps. It was begun in the College of Rural
Devel opnment and the Natural Resources Managenent program To be
part of the program a person nust be accepted into the Peace
Corps and by the University of Al aska, Fairbanks. The applicant
has to have a nmajor that applies to forestry, rural devel opnent,
Al aska Native st udi es, busi ness adm ni stration, nat ur al
resources managenent, political science, economcs, northern
studies, or arelated field. She offered further details.

MS. GRAY said Peace Corps service was included as an allowable
absence until 1998. She said [the terrorist attacks of
Septenber 11, 2001] brought honme to Anmericans that "these
efforts are needed as part of their efforts in foreign policy,
which will lead to inprovenent in national defense, as well."
She i ndi cated her support of HB 127.

9:45: 44 AM

M5. GRAY, in response to questions from Chair Seaton, said those
in the wuniversity's program are still students wunder the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 3, 2005



program however, she doesn't think they are covered under the
student exenpti on.

9:46: 20 AM

CHAI R SEATON suggested Ms. Gray check on that, because full-tine
graduate students would qualify for an allowable absence. He
asked if Ms. Gay was testifying on the second part of bill, as
well, regarding those in the U S. Foreign Service.

9:47: 17 AM

M5. GRAY replied that she would personally be in favor of that,
"because it is equally inportant in ternms of national defense.”

9:48: 16 AM
CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
9:48: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER [noved to adopt] Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, Lines 1&2;
Delete; "and to service as a diplomat in the United
States Foreign Service"

Page 3, Line 2
Delete "(15) serving as a diplomat in the United
St at es Foreign Service"

Instructions to Legislative Legal;
Make correspondi ng anendnents and renunber accordingly

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she had also handed out a sheet
entitled, "Benefits of foreign service officers". She said it
"cones to the core of why I think the Foreign Service should be
handl ed differently than the Peace Corp." She reiterated that
people in the Peace Corp nmake a clear, long-term defined
sacrifice, whereas those in the Foreign Service have nmde a
career choi ce. She offered further details. Representati ve
Gardner said she would not support allow ng dividends for
Forei gn Service workers.

9:50: 12 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 3, 2005



CHAIR SEATON asked if there was any objection to [Conceptual
Amendnent  1]. There being none, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

[HB 127 was heard and hel d. ]

9:50: 43 AM

CHAIR SEATON recessed to a call of the chair at 9:51:.30 AM
[ The neeting was reconvened on Saturday, March 5, at 9:38 a.m|]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 3, 2005



